
BOARD'S REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the Fourteenth Annual Report ol the
Company and lhe Third Annual Report oflana Small Finance Bank Limited together with fhe
Audited Statements ofAccounts for lhe year ended 31st Mar€h, 2020.

1 TINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, OPERATIONS, STATE OT AFFAIRS :

Fv 2019-2424 FY 2018-2019
2,424.77 1,368 27

Interest Expended 980.16 813 63
0DeratinE ExDenses 1,164.08 1,131.19
Provisions and continqencies 250.40 1,372.51

30.13 (1,949.06)
Add: surplus/(loss) brought forward from

[4,130.81) (2,181.7 s)

Amount available lor aDDroDriation 0.00 0.00

Dividend & Dividend lax 0.00 0.00
Transfer to Statutory Reserve under section 17
ofthe Banking Regulation Actand other [25.98) 0.00

Surplus carried to Ealance Sheet (4,-126.66) i4,130.811

Note: - Previousyea/s figures have been restated wherever necessary, to align with the
current year's figures,

2 CHANGE IN THE NATURB OF BUSINESS,IT ANY:

There is no change in thebusiness ofthe Bank duringtheyear.

3 DIVIDEND:

Pursuant to RBI circular dared April 17, 2O2O vide no. RBt/201.g-20/ZtA DOR.BP.BC.No.
64 / 27.02,067 /2079-2O, your directors have not recommended payment of dividend for the financial
year under review.

4 ISSUANCE OF CAPITAL:

During the year under review 35,61,876 equity shares of face value of Rs. 1O/- per share were
allotted by way of rights issue in various tranches and in terms ofexercise ofunits against Restricted
Stock Unitsbringingin a total inflow of Rs. 338.58 crore.

As on 31st March, 2020, the paid up equity share capital stood at Rs,50,71,86,030 crore, divided into
5,07,18,603 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and paid up preference share capital was
Rs.150,00,00,000 crore, divided into 15,00,00,000'preference shares ofRs, 10/- each
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Funds ralsed and Credlt ttatlngs

During the year the bank raised firnds by way of issue of Inter-Bank Participatory Certificates
(lBPCSJ. The outstanding IBPCs as on 31st Mar 2020 was Rs. 1,116 crore, The IBPCs ourstanding
from five banksviz. FederalBank Ltd. (Rs, 150.rore,) Axis Bank Ltd, (Rs.500 croreJ, HDFC Bank Ltd
(Rs, 200 crore), KarurVysya Bank Ltd.(Rs. 100 crore) and RBL Bank (tu.166 crore.). The Bank also
raised Rs.225 crore from IDFC First Bank Ltd by issuing sub-ordinated debt during Q1-FY 20
(Rs. 175 c.ore of existing sub-debt was prepaid).

The bank also availed a refinance facility ofRs, 1000 crore from NABARD and a term loan facility of
Rs. 200 crore from IDFC First Bank during the year.

ICRA upgraded the rating given to the Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDS) and Subordinate debt
from UCRAI BBB- (negative) to flCRAl BBB (stable) in January, 2020 for the amount rated is
Rs. 1,427 crore.

Capital Adequacy

As per operating guidelines for Small Finance Banks, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum
Capital Adequacy Ratio of 150/o with minimum Common Equity Tier I (CET I) CAR of7.5yo.

As on March 31, 2020, the Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank stood at 19.27%0 and the Common
Equiry Tier I ratio stood at 13.19%.

BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met I (Eight) times during the financial year. The quarterly meetings were
held on 10-May-2019; 30-May-2019i 14-Aug-2019; 24-Oct-2079 and 31-lan-2020 to approve
audited financials (including half yearly financials with limited review) and to deliberate on various
business updates,

The Board also met at shorler notice, on 21-lun-2019) 26"lrl-2019 and 31-Oct-2019 to accord
approval for issue ofsecurities,

DIRECTORSAND KEYMANANGERIALPERSONNEL:

As on 31* March 2020 the composition ofthe Board was :

1. Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan
2. Mr. Ajay Kanwal
3. Mr. Vikram Gandhi
4. Ms. Vijayalatha Reddy
5. Mr, R. Ramaseshan
6. Ms. Chitra Talwar and
7. Mr, Puneet Bhatia

Mr, Anuragh Adlakha, Chief Financial officer resigned on 4-ru12019 and Mr. Kapil Krishan was
appointed as the Chief Financial 0fficer ofthe Bank we.f 14-Aug-2019.

DECLARATTON FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS

The Bank has received declarations from all Independent Directorsonthe Bank's Board, as required
under Section 149(7J ofthe Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet with the criteria as laid
down in Section 149(6) ofthe CompaniesAct,2013,



8. COMPOSITION OF AUDIT &COMPLIANCE COMMITTEEAND NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE:

Audit & Compliance Committee:

The composition ofthe Audit & Compliance Committee as on 31* March 2020 was as fouows:

Mr. R. Ramaseshan (Commlttee Chairman)
Mr, Ramesh Ramanathan
Mr. Vikram Gandhi
Mr, Puneet Bhatia

The lerms ofreference ofthe Audit & Compliance Committee are as per the provisions ofSection 177
ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and as prescrib€d by the Reserve Bank Of India.

The Audit & Compliance commiltee met five tjmes during !he financial year, on 10-May-2019; 30"
May-2019 i 14-A\E-201q 24-Oct-2019 and 31-lar-2020.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The composition ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31$ March 2020 was as
lollows I

Mr. R. Ramaseshan (Commitlee Chairman)
Mr, Ramesh Ramanathan
Ms. Viiayalatha Reddy
Ms. Chitra Talwar
Mr. Puneet Bhatia

The terms ofreference ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as per the provisions of
Secrion 178 ofthe Companies Aci, 2013.

The committee met four times in the financial year, on 9-May-2019, 13 -Aug-2019,73-larl -2020 and
31-lan-2020.

The Bank has laid down a Remuneration Policy, as approved by the Nomination & Remuneration
committee for remuneration of Directort Xey Managerial Personnel and other employees. The
policyalso covers the criteria for determining qualifications and otherattributes forappointment of
direcrors, including independent direc!ors.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

Pursuant to the provisions ofsection 177(91 & (10) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees ro report genuine concerns. The vigil
mechanism forms a part of the Whistle Blower Policy, which has been approved by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on sth August 2014 as a NBFC-MFI. After conversion into Small
Finance Bank, the Bank Board has approved the Whisde Blower Policyand Vigjlance policy, in their
meeting held on 8rh February 2018. The Policy has been hosted on the website ofthe Bank.

The Bank has an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy to promote a workplace thaf is free of sexual
harassment, A committee to investigate and redress anygrievance has been formed, which meets at
regular intervals.

9.



10, DIRECTORSRESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT:

In pursuance ofsection 134 (5) ofthe Companies Act,2013, the Directors herebyconfirm that:

[a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures,

[b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state ofaffairs ofthe Bank at the end ofthe financial year and ofthe profit and loss ofthe Bank for
that periodj

(cl the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance ofadequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Bank and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have preparcd the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Bank and lhat such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively,

(0 the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and thatsuch systems were adequate and operating effectively.

II INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES/ JV I

The Bank does not have any Subsidiary orAssociate Company.

12 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required pursuant to secli,on 92(3) of the Compdnies Act,2073 and rr le 12(1) of the Companies

fManagement and Administrationl Rulet 2014, an extract ofthe anmral return in the form MGT 9, a

part of this Annual Report is attached @N!!!llEE_D,

73 AUDITORS:

M/s. MSKC & Associates Chartered Accountants, (earlier known as R K (umar & Col have been

appointed as a statutory aud itors for the financial year 2019- 2 0. The Reserve Bank of India vide thei r
letter no. DBS,ARS,No.1948/08.72.005/2019-20 dated Z7-Sep-2019 have also conveyed their
approval for the appointment of M/s. MSKC & Associates Chartered Accountants, (earlier known as

R K Kumar & Co) as statutory auditors ofthe Bank for the financialyear 2019-20,

14 SECB.Ef4BIAf.IIIIDII:

The Secretarial audit report as issued by Mr, Nagendra D Rao, Practising Company Secretary is
annexed to this Report as ANNEXURE V.

15 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO:

(A) Conservation ofenergy: Not applicable
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(B) Technologr absorytionr Not Applicable

[C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo :

Foreign exchange earnings I NIL and Foreign exchange expenditure I Rs. 51.99 crore

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH RESPECT TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Board has adopted policies and procedurcs for ensuring the orderly and efficient cond uct of its
business, including adherence to the Bank's policies, the safeguard ofits assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timelypreparation of reliable financialdisclosures.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Bank has put in place a comprehensive Risk Management framework supported by detailed
policies and processes for management ofCredit Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity Rish Operational Risk
and various other risks,

The Risk Management Committee of the Board has established a formal Risk Appetite Statement
which governs the risk-taking activities in the Bank. The Risk Management Committee exercises
oversight on the implementation ofvarious risk management policies and processes and is also in
charge of rcview ofthese and other policies from the risk perspective.

CORPORATESOCIAL RESPONSIBILTYPOLICY:

Pursuant to the provisions of S;ction 135 and ScheduleVII oftheCompaniesAct,2013,theCSR
Co m mittee of the Board of Directors was formed to recommend (a) the policy on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and (b) implementation of CSR Projects or Programmes to be undertaken by
the Bankas per the CSR Policy. The CSRpolicy has been dulyapproved by the Board ofDirectors.

REASON FORNOT SPENDINGI

The Bank had earned profit for the financial year 2076-17 and had incurred losses for the next
consecutive financial years namely 2017-18 and 2018-19 and hence the bank could not earmark
funds for Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives during the financial year 2019-20 pursuant to
Section 135[5) ofthe CompaniesAct,2103. However, the Bank has voluntarily spent Rs. 17.01lakh
lowards following CSR initialives during the year2019-20. The details are as under:

a) Partnered with Tirunelveli city Municipal Corporation for

- Solid waste Management and disposal
- Maintenance and upkeep ofone Park

b) Partnered with Puniab Urban Planning & Development Authority

- Regularisation ofPlots and Buildiflgs

l7

18
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS :

Particulars ofContracts or Arrangements with Related parties referred to in Section 188[1] in Form
AoC- 2 is as in ANNEXURE - L

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on 4s May 2020, took note ofthe
evaluation report of the Board's performance including Directors'own performance and committees
ofthe Board. The Committee deliberated on various evaluation attributes indicated in the evaluation
questionnaire for all directors and after due deliberations made an objective assessment and
evaluated that all directorc in the Board have adequate expertise drawn lrom diverse background
and businesses and b ngspecific competencies relevantto the Bank's business and operations,

The Committee found that the performance ofall Directorswas quite satisfactory and the functioning
oftheBoard and its Committees were quite effective. The Committee evaluated Board's composition
and Board's performance as a whole and expressed the satisfaction in this regard.

Employees Stock Option Scheme. (ESOP)r

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ofthe Board of Directors administers and monitors
the Employee Stock option Scheme in accordan€e with the ESoP Scheme approved by the
shareholders,

Details ofEmployees StockOptions as on 31" March 2020

The following arc the outstanding options as atyear cnd:

Particulars

March 31, 2020

ESOP

2077
ESOP

20ta

lsoP
2017
tRSU)

ESOP

zolrl
rRsul

Total Options granted andoutstanding
at the beginning ofthe year 646,179 454,513 44374 23,267

Addr Options granted during the year 1,019,469 289,414 841 11,203
Lessr options forleited / lapsed during
the vear

14,143 240,307 8,7 62

Less : 0ptions exercised during the year 1,939
Options Outstanding as at end ofthe
vear 1,691,505 503,620 45,211 23,7 69

341,276 63,729 44,370 15,891

7,350,229 439,891 841 7,878
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Employee - wise details ofoptioos granted during theyear.

1. Key Managerial Personnel:

Employee Name Designation
No. ofOptions
Grantcd till
date

KapilKrishan ChieiFinarcialOfficer
ESoP r21029

RSU 1526

l,akshmi R N ComDanv Secretarv
ESOP:

1097



Any other employee who received grant of options amounting to 50/6 or more of options
Sranted during that year: NIL

Identified employees who were granted options, during any one year, equal to or exceeding
1% ofthe issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) ofthe bank at the
time ofgranti NIL

22
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RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO EACH DIRECTOR:

Details / Disclosures of Ratio of Remuneration to each Director to the median remuneration of
employees is in ANNEXURE - III.

LISTING wITH STOCK EXCHANGEST

The Bank has listed its debt securities [i.e. non-convertible debentures) on the BSE and confirms
lhatit has paid the annual listing fees for the year2019-20.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

A report on Corporate Governance as applicable to the Bank is included as a part ofthis Annual
Report (ANNEXURE IV).

Ramesh Ramanathan
Non-Exerutive Chairman MD & CI]O

Date: 4 May 2020



ANNEXURE I
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

For the financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) ofthe Company
(Management & Admtnistration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTMTION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN rJ65923K42006Pr.C040028

2. Ilcgistration Date 24 ltn 2a06
3. Name ofthe Company jana Small Finance Bank Limited (formerly known as

Janalakshmi Financial Services Limited)
4. Category/Sub-category

ofthe Company

Public Limited Company limited by Shares

Address ofthe
Registered office &
contact details

The Fairway Business Patk, # 70/1,17/2 & 72/28 Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road, Next to EGL Business

Park,Challaghatta,Bengaluru 560071

6. Whether listed company No, However, the Non-Convertible Debentures ofthe
Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange

7. Name, Address &
contact details ofthe
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, ifany.

KFin Technologies Private Limited (Earlier known as Kar\,y
Fintech Private Limited,
Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32,
Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally
Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana State [TS]
Ph no. | +91040 67761602

]I. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARYAND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

S. No. Name and Description of main
products / services

NIC Code ofthe
Product/service

oZ to totalturnover of the

company

1 Banking & Financial Services 6419L 100%

S.

No.

Name and Address
of the Company

CIN/GLN Holding

/Subsidiary/Associate

7o ofshares
held

Applicable
Section

1 Not applicable

2

3



Category of
Shareholders

No. ofShares held at the beginning ofthe
year[As on 31'March-2019]

No. ofShares held at the end ofthe year[As
on 31-March-20201

Physical

A. Promoters

b) CentralGovt

cl Statc G0vtfs

d) Bodies Co

B, Public
Sharehold
1. Inslitutions
:l Mutual Funds
b) Ba ks / Fl

c) CenlfalCovl
d) State Covtfs
e) Venture
CapitalFunds

1830391 1084128 2974579 2914579 29t45t9

gl FIIs/Foreign L7656423 11114{11u5 194U0315

hl Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds
i) others
IspeciryJ Private

141285

lV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage ofTotal Equity)
Catcgory-wise Share Holding

o/o

Chang
e

during
the

ar

-o.43VD

0 080/0

-0.020/0

shares :



Sub-total

{B)(1):-

19628099 1575890 27203989 44.96y0 22536119 225361).9 ,0.53%

2. Non-
Institutions
al Bodies CorD.
i) Indian 2079t620 444 2079270+ 22653t27 22653127 44.66V0 0 57%

iil Overseas

bl Individuals
il Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

7939 1939 0 00%) 0 000t1

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1

lakh

119410 115195 234605 0 50% 234605 234605

cl Others
fsDecifvl-HUF

199958 199958 0 42Va 1991158 0 39y0 -0.030/.

Non Resident
Indians
Overseas
Corporate
Bodies

662397 +063674 4726077 70.024/a 50928s5 5092855 10.0470 0.02%

Foreign
Narionals
Clearing
Members
'lirrsts
Foreign Bodies -

DR
Sub-total
fBltz):-

21?73385 4179353 25952734 55.04y0 24182481 28182484 555?va 0.53%

'IotalPublic
Shareholding
(B)=(B)t1)+
(B)12\

41,r01484 57552+3 47t56727 100.00y0 50718603 50718603 100.00%

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRS &
ADRs
crand Total
(A+B+C'l

41401484 57 552+3 100.00% 50718603 50718503 100.00%



Convertible Preference Shares :

Category of
Shareholders

No. ofShares held at the beSinning ofthe
year[As on 31-March-2019]

No, ofShares held at the end ofthe
year[As on 31-March-2020]

b) Central Govt

cl State Co

B. Public
Sharehol
l.lnstitutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / Fl

c) CentralGovt

e) Venture
Capital Funds

Companies
gl FIIs/Foreign
Companies
h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds



2. Non-
Institutions
al tsodies Corp.

i) Indian
15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100 000/. 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100.00

iil0verseas
bl Individuals
il Individuai
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess ofRs 1

lakh
c) others
fsDecifvl-HUF
Non Residenr
lndians
0verseas
Corpolate
Bodies
Foreign
Nationals
Clearing
Members
'I\-usts

Foreign Bodies -

DR
Sub-total
fBlfz):-

15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100 000/0 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100.00

Total Public
Shareholding
tB)=(B)t1)+
rBlr2l

15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100.000/o 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100.00

C. Sharesheld
by Custodian
for GDRS &
ADRs
Grand Total
tA+B+C)

15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100.00% 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100.00



B) Shareholding of Promote

C) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, ifthere is no change)

D) ShareholdiDg Pattern oftop tcn Shareholdersl
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of cDRs and ADRs):

ololn
SN Shareholde

r's Name

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year

Shareholding at the end ofthe
year

% change
in
sharehold
ing during
the year

No. of
Shares

% oftotal
Shares of

the
company

o/oof

Shares
Pledged

encumb
ered to
total
shares

No. of
Shares

o/o of
total

Shares
ofthe

compan

v

o/oof

Shares
Pledged /
encumbe
red to
total
shares

1

NIL Nil Nil NA Nil Nil NA

SN Particulars ShareholdinB at the beginning of
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year

No. ofshares % oftotal
shares ofthe
company

No. of shares % oltoral
shares ofthe
company

At the beginning of the
year

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during
the year speci8/ing the
reasons fol increase /
decrease Ie.g.allotment
/transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc.):

NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end ofthe year N1L NIL N]L NIL

SN For Each ofthe Top 10
shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning
ofthe year

Cumulative
Shareholding durinB
the
Year

No. of
shares

o/o oftotal
shares of
the
company

No. of
shares

70 oftotal
shares of
the
company



At the beSinning ofthe year Refer
Attachment
A

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifyinB the reasons for increase

/decrease [e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equ,ty etc.):

At the end ofthe year

Vl Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN Shareholding of each Directors and

each Key Managerial Personnel
Shareholding at the
beginninS

ofthe year

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the
Year

No. of
shares

Yo oftotal
shares of
the
company

No. of
shares

% oftotal
shares of
the

company

At the beginning ol the year NII,

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specii/in8 the reasons for increase

/decrease (e.9. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end ofthe vear

INDEBTEDNESS -lndebtedness ofthe Company includinB interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment.

Rupccs i

Particulars
Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

'I otal
Indebtcdncss

Indebtedness at the be8inning ofthe financial year

I Principal Amount 7 67 .00 3,319.47 4,086.47

i) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued bllt not Due 30.5 3 103.06 13 3.58

Total(i+ii+iii) 797.53 3,422.52 4,220.05

Change in lndebtedness durinB the financial year

Addition 72,120.27 2,970.00 L5,O90.27
. Addition - conversion from secured to
unsecured

Reduction 77579.79 3,582.27 75,762.-t8



. Reduction - conversion from secured to
umecured

Nct Change 540.36 1612.27) (77.e1)
Indebtedness atthe end ofthe financial year

i) PrincipalAmount 1,307.36 2,707.20 4,014.56

iiJ Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due 1_0.27 57 .7 6 68.03
Total[i+ii+jii) 7,317.63 2,764.96 4,O42.59

Note : Section 73 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, states that the provisions of the said Act relating to
acceptance ofdeposits by companies do not apply to a Banking company as defined in the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, information relating to the Bank's deposits is not disclosed in the table above.
As per the applicable provisions ofthe Banking Regulation Act, 1949, details of the Bank's deposits have
been included under Schedule 3 - Deposits, in the financial statements ofthe Bank.

Debentures

Type ofDebentures No. of
Debentures Nominal Value per Debentures (Rs,)

Total Nominal
value of

Debentures
lRs,ln crorel

Non-convertible ( for each
tvDelr-

At the beginning of the year 27,964

15,000 units at I.V 10,000

2,215.00

11,960 units at FV 10,00,000

1004 units at FV 1,00,00,000

ChanBes during the year
(lncrease/Redemption)

Increase:
2,250

2,250 units at FV 10,00,000 225.00

Redemption:
22,028

Redemption 15,000 units of FV 10,000

1,013.00
Redemption 6,700 units of FV 10,00,000

FV Redemption of32B of100,00,000
units

Atthe end offhe year 8,186

7,510 units at FV 10,00,000

1_,427 .00676 units at FV 1,00,00,000

Partly-convertible { for each
tvDel NA NA NA

At the besinnins oflhe vear
Changes during the year
f lncrease/RedemDtionl

At the end ofthe vear



Fully-convertible I for each
tvDe)

NA NA

At the beeinnine ofthe vear
Changes during the year
flncrease/Converted)
At the end ofthe year

Total Amount of Debentures

At the beginning ofthe year
27,964

15,000 units at FV 10,000

2,2L5.0011,960 units at PV 10,00,000

1,004 units at FV 1,00,00,000

Changes during the year
0ncrease/llcdemplionl

Increase:
2,250

2,250 unirs ar FV 10,00,000 2 25.00

Redemption:
22,028

Redemption 15,000 urrits of FV 10,000

1,013.00
Redemption 6,700 units of FV 10,00,000

Redemption of32B of 100,00,000 units

At the end ofthe year 8,186

7,510 units at FV 10,00,000

1,427.O4676 units at FV 1,00,00,000

VII, REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.

A. Remuneratjon to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Managcr:

SN, Particulars of Remuneration Name of
MD/wrD/
Manager

TotalAmount

Ajay Kanwal

0\,1D & CE0)

1 Gross salary
(al Salary as per provisions contained in section 17[1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

4,52,44,47 6 4,52,84,47 6

[b) Value ofperquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961* 3 9,600 39,600

{c) Profits in lieu ofsalary under section 17(3J lncome-
tax Act, 1961

2 Stock 0ption
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission

- as Yo ofprofit
- others, specifu

5 0thers, please specify
Car FIMI 12,54,464 12,54,468



Employer PF Contriburion 21,44,820 21,44,A20
Total [A) 4,86,83,7 64 4,86,83,7 64
Ceiling as per the Act NA NA

rvote - Value ofthe Perquisites is not included in the Total amount [A).

B. Remuneration to other directors
SN, Particulars of

Remuneration
Name of
Directors

Total
Amount

1 Independent
Directors

Vikram
Candhi

Vijayalatha
Reddy

R,

Ramaseshan

Rama

Subramania
m Gandhi

Chitra
Talwar

Fee for
attendinS
board
committee
meetings

3,75,000 7,25,000 9,00,000 1,25,000 5 0,0 00 2L,7 5,000

Commission

Others, please

specify

Total (1) 3,75,000 7,25,000 9,00,000 1,25,000 50,000 2L,7 5,000
2 Other Non-

Executive

Directors

Ramesh

Ramanathan
Puneet

Bhatia

Fee for
attending
board
committee
meetings

0thers, please

speciry

Total [2)
Total

tB)=t1+2)

3,75,000 7,25,000 9,00,000 1,25,000 50,000 21,75,000

Overall
Ceiling as per
the Act
(sitting fees
not to exceed
Rs.

1,00,000 per

meeting)

The Bank pays sitting fees to Non-Executive Directors which is below
the ceilinS ofRs.1,00,000/- per meeting as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.



C. REMUNEMTION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD [*Please note
that the salary ofCE0 is already provided under section VII A and in our Bank MD holds the position ofCEO
a)sol

SN Particulars of
Remuneration

Key

Managerial

Personnel

CEO * cF0 [till4-
lul-2019)

CFO (wef
14-Aug-

2079)

CS Total

1 Gross salary 39,20,275 95,75,003 23,47 ,502 1,5A,02,720

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(11ofthe
Income-tax Act, 1961

(bJ Value of perquisites

u/s 17[2) Income-tax Act,

7961

[cJ Profits in lieu ofsalary
under section 17(3)
lncome-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock 0ption
3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission
- as o/o ofprofit
others, specify...

0thers, please

specifyIEmployer PF

Contribution)
Total 7,47,742 7,09,937 2,97,673

47,07,957 95,75,003 24,77,433 1,61,00,393

VIII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section ofthe
Companies
Act

Rrief
Description

Details of
Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
IRD / NCr.l/
COURT]

Appeal made,
ifany (give
Details)

A. COMPANY - NIL

Penaltv
Punishment
ComDoundinf
B. DIRECTORS - NIL
Penalty



Punishment
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT. NIL
Penalty
Punishmcnt
Compounding

Ramesh Ramanathan
Non' Executive Chairman

.-..
Kanwal

Date: 4 May 2020



Attach[rcDt A

Jana Small Finance Bank Limited
Shareholding Pattern as on 3l-Mar-2020 and 31-Mar-2019 (Top 10 shareholders otherthan directors, promoters, GDRs

TPG Asia VISF Pte. Ltd

5,026,499
North Haven Private Equity Asia

Platinum Pte. Ltd 4,141,427
Amansa Holdings Pte. Ltd

Harbourvest Partners Co-
lnvestment Fund lV L.P. 2,266,940
Client Rosehil Limited

1,157,755 7,757,755
Alpha TC Holdings Pte. Ltd

148,975
Treeline Asia IVaster Fund
(Singapore)Pte. Ltd.

lClCl Prudential Life lnsurance
Company Ltd 1,107,639
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance
Company Ltd 1,084,128

QRG Enterprises Limited

Ramesh Ramanathan
Non Exeautive Chairman MD & CEO

and

S. No. shareholder No of
Shares (31-

Mar-2019)
holding

Allotment
{Oct 2019;
Nov 2019;

Dec 2019 and
lan 20201

Transfers No of
Shares

(31-Mar
2020)

%

holding

1

4,437,580
9.40%

594,919
9.91%

2

4,147,427

8.190/, 8.18%

2,260,564
4_79%

493,111 3,154,275
6_22%

4

2,O22,014 4.29% 244,926 4_47%

5 3.73% 3.474/o

6

1,144,97 5 3.71% 3.45%
l

1,652,101 3.50% 1,652,141 1.26%
8

1,107,639 2.35% 2.184/d

9

I,484,128 2.30% 2_14%

10

986,216 2_O9% 986,216 1_94%

Date: 4 May 2020



ANNEXURE . II

FORM NO. AOC.2

Form for disclosure ofparticulars ofcontracts/arrangements entered into bythe companywith related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) ofsection 188 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm,s
length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuqnt to clause (h) ol sub-section (3)ol section 134 olthe Act qnd Rule 8(2) oI the
Compqnies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

l.Detailsofcontractsorarrangementsortransactionsnotatarm'slengtlbasis:AllRelatedparty
Transactions are at arm's length.

2. Details ofmaterial contracts or arrangement ortransactions atarm's length basis

(D

a) Name[s) ofthe related partyand nature ofrelationship: )Jana Urban Space Foundation (lndiaJ

[Jana USP); Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan, Chairman ofthe Board is also a Director in that Company.

tb) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transacti ons : Management SeruiceAgreement

(cl Du rati on of the contracts/arrangements/transactions : Three years (w.e.f 1$ O ctober 2 017)

td) Salient terms ofthe contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, ifany

Spatial analytics serviceswhich includes :

1. Development of a STAR Portal and Locator App to capture locational details of customers and
store fronts (JC, JPC and Bank Branchl for Jana Bachat, Small Batch Loans, Cash Management and
Enterprise Financial Service
2. Mapping ofthe store front pin code boundaries on STAR Portal maps for each store front.
3. Generate route maps, visit status ofthe front-line collections executives.
4. Generation ofdaily, weekly & monthly reports including exception view,

(e) Date(s) ofapproval by the Board : 15-Nov-2017

(g) Amount paid as advances, ifany: Nil

Note : the agreement was terminated w,e,f 30th September 2019,

0r)

(al Name (sJ of the related party and narure of relationship :Crossdoma i n So lutions p\,t Ltd and M r.
Ramesh Ramanathan, Chairman ofthe Board is also a Director in that Company.

(b) Natureofcontracts/arrangements/transactions:ServiceAgreement



(c) Duration of the co ntracts/arrangements/transactions : For three years, Starting fro m 13t April
2017 to 37st MArch 2O2O

(dl Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transacti ons including the value, if any:

The agreement is for payroll processing; Full& final Settlement ofresigned employeesi Year-end
processing Vouching; Filing of24Q, Theyalso provide statutory and non-statutory report. Charges

for the services is elaborately mentioned in the Agreement dated May 2017 - Schedule B

[e) Date[s) of approval by the Board, if any: 30tn May 2017

(0 Amount paid as advances, ifany: Nil

Note: The agreementwas terminated wef 1st October 2019.

(iiD

(a] Name(sl ofthe related party and nature ofrelationship I lana Capital Limited and Mr. Ramesh

Ramanathan, Director & Non-Executive Chairman ofthe Board is also a Director & Chairman in
that Company.

(b) Nature ofcontracts/arrangements/transactions I Service Provider Agreement

(c) Duration ofthe contracts/arrangements/transactions : For three years, Starts from 2-Mar-z018.

(d) s alient terms of the contracts or arrangeme nts or transacti ons includi ng the value, if any:

The agreement is for availing servicds oflana Small Finance Bank Limited for managing the
Corporate related matters and regulatory/statutory related matters ofthe Company inter alia the
services ofPrinciple Officer underthe provisions ofPrevention ofMoney Laundering [PML) Act,

and rules.

[e] Date[s] ofapproval by the Board, ifany: 27s March 2018.

(0 Amount paid as advances, ifany: Nil

(iv)

(a] Name(s] ofthe related party and nature ofrelationship I lana Holdings Limited and Mr. Ramesh

Ramanathan, Director & Non-Executive Chairman ofthe Board is also a Director & Chairman in
that Company.

(b) Nature ofcontracts/arrangements/transactions : Service Provider Agreement

G) Duration ofthe contracts/arrangements/transactions I For three years, Starts from 2-Mar-2018.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or tansactions including the valu e, if any:



(e)

(0

tv)

Ia)

Ramesh Ramanathan
Non Executive Chairman

Aiay Kanwal
MD & CEO

(b)

(c)

td)

(e)

(0

The agreement is for availing se&ices oflana Small Finance Bank Limited for managing the
Corporate related matters and regulatory/statutory related matters ofthe Company inter alia the
Company Secretarial services and the services ofprinciple Officerunderthe provisions of
Prevention ofMoney Laundering (PMLI Ac! and rules.

Date(s) ofapproval by the Board, ifany: 27th March 2018.

Amount paid as advances, ifany: Nil

Name(s) ofthe related party and nature of relationship : Jana Urban Foundation and Mr. Ramesh
Ramanathan, Director & Non-Executive Chairman ofthe Board is also a Director & Chairman in
that Company.

Nature o f contracts/arrangements/transacti ons : Trademark Licence Agreement

Duration ofthe contracts/arrangements/tmnsactions : Perpetuity, effective from 1-Nov-2019

Salient terms ofthe contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, ifany:

The licence agreement is for usage of"]" Logo and word "JANA" by the Bank which is owned by ]an
Urban Foundation

Date[s) of approval by the Board, ifany: 24th october 2019

Amount paid as advances, ifany: Nil

Date: 4 May 2020



ANNEXUTIE - III

Iil 'lhe ratio of the remuneration oF

cach dircctor lo the median
remuneration of fhe employees ol the
company for the linancialyear;

MD&CEO - 4,65,38,944 /2,06.000

All Employee Median [2,06,000J - Median amount of
annualised Fixed Dav for all emDlovees

[ii) The percentage increase in
remuneration of each director, Chief
Financial 0fficer, Chief Executive
officer, Company Secretary or
Manager, ifany, in the financialyear;

MD&CEO: (17.230lol " The increase in costvis-a-vis
previous year is on account ofaffears amount paid in this
FY [i.e. Jan'2020) basis the approval from RBI

CSr [-25.87010] - Reduction in cost is on account ofnew CS

appointed at a lower cost in lieu ofthe exiting CS who was
paid F & F in the previous FY [2018-2019].

CF0: [18,71%) This represents 2 CFO's salary in the
previous year [18-19) as against a combination of 2 CF0's
salary in the current year f2019-2020) at different costs.

(iii) The percentage increase in the
median remuneration of employees in
the financial veari

(20600 - 199108) / 199108 = 3.460/o

(iv) The number of permanent
emplovees on the rolls ofcompany;

16212 (as on 31st March 2020)

(vl Average percentile increase already
made in the salaries ofemployees other
than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its comparison
with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the
manaPerial remunerationl

Jana Small Finance Bank compensation policy has a target
for compensation benchmarking at median or above for
employees.

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration
is as per the remuneration policy ofthe
company,

Yes

STATEMENT SHOWING DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY:

Particulars ofemployees remuneration, as required under section 197(12) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 5(21 and 5(3) ofthe Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, forms a part ofthis report. Considering first proviso to Section 136[1J ofthe Companies Act, 2013,
the Annual Report, excluding the said information, was sent to the members ofthe Bank and others entitled
thereto. The said information is available for inspection at the registered office ofthe Bank during working
hours up to the date of ensuing annual general meetin8. Any member interested in obtaining such
information may write to the Company Secretary in tFis regard. The said informalion is also avajlable on
the website ofthe Bank at www.janabank.co

Iiamesh Ramanathan
Nor Executive Chairmar

nwal
MD & CEO

Date: 4 May 2020



ANNEXURE - IV

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Bank is committed to ensure high standards oftransparency and accountability in all its activities. Best
management practices and high levels of integrity in decision making are diligently followed to ensure
sustainedwealth generation and creation ofvalue for all stakeholders. The Bank adheres to all principles of
corporate governance in its true spirit and at ailtimes.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board consists of 7 Directors as on 31* March 2020. All independent directors possess requisite
qualifications and are very expedenced in their respective fields. Necessary disclosures have been obtained
from allthe directors regarding their directorship and have been taken on record by the Board.

The names ofthe Directors and the details of other comniittee membership ofeach Director as on 31* March
2019 is given below:

Board Meetings and Attendance at Board Meetings

The Board met eight times during the financial year 2019"20. The Board of Directors ofthe Bank had met
regularly and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days, as per the
provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

The dates for the board meetings are fixed after taking into account the convenience ofall the directors and
sumcient notice is given to them. Detailed agenda notes are sent to the directors. All information required
for decision making are incorporated in the agenda. Those that cannotbe included in the agenda are tabled
at the meeting. The Managing Director & CE0 appraises the Board on the overall performance ofthe Bank
at every board meeting. The Board reviews performance, approves capital expenditures, sets the strategv
ofthe Bank and ensures financial stability, The Board takes on record the actions taken by the Bank on all
its decisions periodically.

Attendance ofeach Director at Board Meetings

s.No Name
No. of Board
Meetings held

No. of Board
Meetings attended

1 Ramesh Ramanathan 5 5

2
Ajay KanwaI 5

3 Vikram Gandhi 5
3

4
Vijayalalha Reddy 5

5



5
11.Ilamascshan 5

6
Rama Subramaniam Gandhi
(resigned wef 10-May-2019)

1
L

7
Chitra Talwar [wef31 lan 2020] 1

1

8
Puneet Bhatia [wef31 Jan 2020) 7

1

Attendance ofeach Director at Board Meetings (at shorter notice) |

S, NO
No. oi Board

Meetings held
No. of Board

Meetings attended

1 Rrmesh Ramanathan 3 3

I Ajay Kanwal 3 3

3 Vikram Gandhi 3 0

4 Vijayalatha Reddy 3 2

5 R, Ramaseshan 3 3

6
Rama Subramaniam Candhi lresigned wef 10-

May-2079)
0

0

7 Chitra Talwar (wef 31-lan-2020J 0 0

B Puneet Bhatia Iwef 31-Jan-2020] 0 0

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCf, COMMITTEE

The committee assists the board in the dissemination of financial information and in overseeing the
financialand accounting processes in the Bank. Theterms ofreference ofthe committee covers allmatters
specified in section 177 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and as required by the Reserve Bank oFIndia. The terms
of reference broadly include review of internal audit reports and action taken reports, assessment ofthe
efficacy of the internal control systems/ financial reporting systems and reviewing the adequacy of the
financial policies and practices followed by the Bank. The committee reviews compliance with legal and

statutory requirements, quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements and related party
transactions and reports its findings to the Board, The committee also recommends the appointment ofthe
internal auditorandthe statuto ry auditor. The committee also looks into those matterc specifically referred
to it by the Board.

Statutory auditorc were present at the audit committee meetings held on 10-May-2019; 30-May-2019 and
24-Oct-2019 .



The committee comprisedthe following directors for the year ended 31st March 20201

Mr. R. Ramaseshan (Committee Chairmanl
Mr. Vilaam Gandhi - Member
IUr. Ramesh Ramanathan - Member
Mr. Puneet Bhatia - Member

The committee met 5 times during the year. The dates of the meetings were 10-May-2019; 30-May-2019;
14-Arg-2079; 24-Oct-2019 and 37-lan-2020.

The terms ofreference ofthe Committee :

The Committee is governed by the terms ofreference specified by Companies Act 2013, RBI circularc issued
from time to time & the regulations ofSEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
20r 5.

The Bank has adopted the terms ofreference for the Committee from the three regulators which are listed
asAnnexure I, II and III to this Charter.

Annexure I

(AJ As per the provision ofSection 177 ofthe Companies Ac! 2013, the Committee shallact in accordance
with the terms ofreference specified in writing by the Board which shallinter alia, include

[i] the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;
(ii) review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness ofaudit process;
(iii] examinatiorl ofthe financial statement and the auditors' report thereon;

[iv) approval or any subsequent modification oftransactions ofthe companywith related partiesj
(v) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
(vi) valuation ofundertakings or assets ofthe compan, wherever it is necessary;
(vii) evaluation ofinternal financial controls and risk management systems;
(viii) monitoring the end use offunds raised through public offers and related matters.

The Committee maycallforthe comments ofthe auditors about internal control systems, the scope ofaudit,
including the observations ofthe auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the
Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internaland statutoryauditors and the management
ofthe company.

The Committee shall have authorityto investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in sub-
section (41 of Section 177 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose
shall have power to obtain professional advice from external sources and have fullaccess to information
contained in the records ofthe company.



Annexure II

IB] Terms ofReference as per RBI Circular issued from time to time are as below:

Quarterly
Exposure to sensitive sectors i.e. capital market & realestate.

- KYC / AML Guidelines - (i) Review ofimplementation (ii) Review ofcompliance of concunent audit
reports with respect to adherence to I(YC / AML guidelines at branches.

Review of housekeeping - particularly balancing and reconciliation of long outstanding entries
Suspense/Sundries/Draftspayable/paid/FundsinTransit/Clearing/SCL/CSGLaccounts
Review ofcompliance in aespect ofthe Annual Financial Inspection conducted by RBI and any other
inspectior conducted by any re8ulators IACB should rev,ew this on ongoing basis till the bank
furnishes full compliance. ACB should closely monitor persisting deficiencies pointed out in RBI

Inspection Reports ]
- Review ofAudit plan and status ofachievement thereof.
- Review ofsignificant Audit Findings ofthe following audits along with the compliance thereof (jJ

LFAR [ii) Concllrrent Audit [iii) lnternal Inspection [iv] LS. Audit of Data Centre [v) Treasury and

Derivatives (vi) Management Audit at Controlling offices / Head Offices (viiJ Audit of Service

Branches [viii) Curency Chest [ix) FEMA Audit ofbranches authorized to deal in foreign exchange,

etc,

- Compliance report on directives issued byACB / Board / RBL

- Report on compliance ofclause 49 and other guidelines issued by SEBI from time to time.
- Report on compliance of regulatory requirement of Regulators in Host Countries in respect of

overseas branches,
- Review ofFrauds (ftauds ofRs.1 crorc and above to be reviewed as and when reported).
- Review offinancialresults for the quarter

Reviewofinformationonviolationsbyvariousfunctionariesintheexerciseofdiscretionarypowers.
- lnformation in respect ofequity share holdings in borrower companies more than 3oyo oftheir paid

up capital.
- Review First Year Audit Committee minutes and give recommendations.

HalfYearly
- Status of implementatio n o f Ghosh and I ilani Committe e reports
- Detailed report on fraudulent transactions relating to Internet Banking through phishing attacks

pointinS out in particular the deficiencies in the existing systems and steps taken by the IT
department to prevent such cases,

Annual
Change in accounting policy and practices which may have significant bearing on financial
statements, A confirmation that accounting policies are in compliance with accounting standards
and RBl guidelines.

- Review of IS Audit Policy
Review oftransactions with related parties



- Review of accou nti ng policies / systems of the bank with a view to ensu ring greater tra nsparen cy i n

the bank's accounts and adequacy ofaccounting standards.
' Review of adequacy of the internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverage and frequency of i nternal aud it.

Review ofthe bank's financial and risk management policies.
- Review ofannual accounts ofthe bank.
- Appointment of statutory auditors and review of performance - both for domestic and overseas

operations,
- Penalties imposed / penal action taken against bank under various laws and statutes and action

taken for corrective measures
- Revi ew of report on Revenu e leakage detected by Internal / External Au ditors and status of re covery

thereof- reasons for undercharges and steps taken to prevent revenue leakage.

Annexure Ill

[C) As per the regulations ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
role ofthe Audit Committee and review of information byAudit Committee is as under below :

[1) oversiBht of the Bank's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financialstatement is correct, sufficient and credible;

[2) recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms ofappointment ofauditors ofthe Bank;
(3) approval ofpa,,mentto statutory audito.s for anyother services rendered by the statuto ry au dito rs;

[4) reviewin& with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:
a) matters required to be included in the director's responsibility statement to be included in the board's
report in terms of clause [c) ofsub-section (3) of Section 134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013;
b) changes, ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise ofjudgment by management;
d) significant adjustments made in the financialstatements arising out ofaudit findings;
el compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

0 disclosure ofany related party transactions;

B) modified opinion[s) in the draft audit report;
(5) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;
(61 reviewin& with the manatement, the statement ofuses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue/ preferential issue, etc.), the statement offunds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilisation ofproceeds ofa public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations
to the board to take up steps in this matter;
(7] reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

(Bl approval or any subsequent modification offiansactions ofthe Bank with related parties;



[9) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
(10) valuation ofundertakings or assets ofthe Bank, wherever it is necessary;

[11) evaluation ofinternal financial controls and risk management systems;
(12) reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;
(13) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, includirlg the structure ofthe internal audit
department, staffing and seniority ofthe offrcial heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal au dit;
(141 discussion with internal auditors ofany significant findings and follow up there on;
(15] reviewing the findings ofany internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems ofa material nature and reporting
the matter to the board;
(16) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature afld scope ofaudit as

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain anyarea ofconcern;
(17J to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case ofnonpayment ofdeclared dividends) and creditors;

[18] periodic inspection report submitted bythe RBI and Certificates/returns/reports to the RBI pertaining
to the Audit Committee function

[19] annualTarAudit statement and auditors report thereon
(201to reviewthe functioning ofthe whistle blower mechanism;
(211 approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. ofthe candidate;

[22) to ensure that an lnformation System Audit ofthe internal systems and processes is conducted at least
once in two years to assess operational risks faced by the Bank,

[23) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms ofreference of the audit committee.

The committee shall mandatorily review the following informationl

(1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results ofoperations;

[2) statement of significant related party transactions [as defined by the committee), submitted by
management;

[3) management letters / letters of internal co ntrol weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
(4) internal audit reports relating to internal control weakn€sses; and

[5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneraiion ofthe internal auditor shall be subject to review
by the committee.

[6) statement ofdeviations as and when becomes applicable: {Need to review once the Bank get listed}

[a) quarterly statement of deviation[s) including report of monitoring aSency, if applicable, submitted to
stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32[1) ofSEBI (L0DR) Regulations, 2015.

[b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of SEBI IL0DR) Regulations, 2015.

Compliance Charter for theAudit and Compliance Committee ofthe Board IACB)



sl. No Particulars Frequency

1 Report on compliance breaches/failures, if any Quarterly, Annually
2 Review of the annual compliance risk assessment Annually
3 Rcview of the implementation of KYC-AML guidelines Quarterly

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee comprised the following Directors for the year ended 31st March 2020:

Mr. R. Ramaseshan [Committee Chairman]
Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan ' Member
Ms. Vijayalatha Reddy - Member
Ms. Chitra Talwar - Member
Mr. Puneet Bhatia - Member

The committee met 4 times duringthe year i.e on 9-May-2019; 13-Aug'2019; 13-lan-2019 and 31-lan-2020.

The terms of reference ofthe Committee shall, inter alia, include

Formulation ofthe criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a

director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

- To undertake a process of due diligence to determine the suitability of any person for
appointment/continuing to hold appointment as a Director on the Board, based upon qualification,
expertise, track record, integrity other'fitand proper'criteria, positive attributes and independence
(ifapplicable) and formulate the criteria relating thereto;

- Formulation ofcriteria for evaluation oflndependent Directors and the Board;
- Devising a policy ofBoard diversity;
- IdentiB/ing persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removaland succession planning for Directors;

- To review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and expe ence) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Bank's corporate strategy;

- To assess the independence oflndependent Non- Executive Directors;
- To review the results ofthe Board performance evaluation process that relate to the composition of

the Board;

Annual appraisal of the performance of the Managing Director and fixing his/her terms of
remunerationl

- Annual appraisalofthe Senior Management team reporting to the Managing Director;
Annual Performance Review ofthe staff;

- Framing guidelines for the Employee Stock 0ption Scheme (ESOS) and decide on the grant ofstock
options to the employees and Whole Time Directors ofthe Bank and its subsidiaries.



The role ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committeel

Nomination:
- Making recommendations to the Board on the necessary and desirable competencies o f directo rs to

ensure thatthe Board has an appropriate mix ofskills, experience, expertise and diversityto enable

it to discharge its responsibilities and deliver the Company's corpomte objectives;

At the request of the Board, making recommendations for the appointment and re-election of
directors;
Prior to recommending a candidate for appointment to the Board, undertaking checks as to a

candidate's character, experience, education, criminal record and bankru ptcy histo ry and any other
checks it considers appropriate;

' Establishing and, at the request ofthe Board, reviewing induction programs for new directors and
continuing education programs for all directors in order to allow new directors to participate fully
and actively in Board decision-making at the earliest opportunity, and to enable new directors to
gain an understanding of - the industry within which the Company operates; - the Company's
financial, strategic, operational and risk management position; - the culture and values of the

Company; - the rights, duties and responsibilities ofthe directors; - the roles and responsibilitiei of
the Company's senior management and its subsidiaries; - the role of the Committees; - meeting
arrangements; and - director interaction with each other, senior executives and other stakeholders;

- Regularly reviewing the time commitment required from a non-executive director and whether non-
executive directorc are meeting this requirement;

- Evaluating the performance ofthe Board, its Committees and directors in line with the processes

approved by the Board from time to time;
- Developin& implementing and reviewing the Company's succession plans for membership of the

Board to ensure: - an appropriate balance of skills, expedence expertise and diversity; and - an

appropriate structure and composition ofthe Board;
- Ensuring that all non-executive directors: - specifically acknowledge to the Company prior to being

submitted for election or re-election that theywillhave sufficient time to meet what is expected of
them; and inform the Chairman of the Company and the Committee before accepting any new

appointments as directors ofother companies; and
Making recommendations to the Board in respect ofthe membership and chairmanship ofthe Audit
& Compiiance Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Remuneration:
- Determining and agreeing with the Board a framework or broad policy for the remuneration ofthe

Managing Director and such other senior executives as it is designated by the Board to consider. No

individual shall be directly involved in deciding his or her own remuneration;
- In determining such policy, taking into account all factors which it deems necessary. The objective

ofsuch policy shall be to ensure that senior executives ofthe Company are motivated to pursue the
long-term growth and success ofthe Company within an appropriate control framework and that
there is a clear relationship between senior executive performance and remuneration;



Within the terms of the agreed policy, determining the total individual remuneration package of
each senior executive ensuring an appropriate balance between fixed and incentive pay including,
where appropriate, bonuses, incentive payments andshares or share optionsto reflectthe shortand
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the Company's circumstances and goals;
Determining the Company's recruitment, retention and termination policies and procedures for
senior executives;

Determining the policy for any incentive schemes to be operated by the Company and asking the
Board, when appropriate, to seek shareholder approval for such schemes. The terms ofany equity
based remuneration schemes shall prohibit entering into transactions or arrangements which limit
the economic risk ofparticipating in unvested entitlements under these schemes;

- Determining the policy for superannuation armngements for the Company's employees;
- Determining a framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the non-executive directors of

the Companyj
- Reviewing and reporting to the Board on the remuneration of directors, senior executives and all

employees ofthe Company based on gender; and
- Reviewing and approving the corporate governance section ofthe Company's annual report.

Diversityl
- Ensuring that all decisions, frameworks and policies regarding nomination and remuneration are

made giving regard to the Company's objectives in respect ofpromoting and maintaining diversity
throughout the Company and on the Board;

- Reviewing, developing and making recommendations to the Board and, in particular, establishing
measurable objectives to promote and maintain diversity throughout the Company and on the
Board;and
On at least an annual basis, reviewing and reporting to the Board on: - the Company's progress
a8ainst the measurable objectives set by the Board for achieving greater gender diversity; and - the
Company's compliance with the Diversity Policy, and where necessary, making recommendations
to the Board on any changes to the Diversity Policy or the measurable objectives for achieving
greater gender diversity.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The Bank has constituted a Risk Management Committee with the following directorc:

Mr. Vikram Gandhi (Committee ChairmanJ
Mr. Aiay Kanwal - Member
Mr. R. Ramaseshan - Member
Ms. Vijayalatha Reddy - Member
Mr. Puneet Bhatia - Member

The Committee met 4 times during the year under review. The dates ofthe meeting were 9-May-2O19 73-
AD1-2O]9: 24 0ct-2019 and 3 I-lan-2020.

Terms of reference ofthe Committee:



The Committee is governed by the terms ofreference as specified by RBI circulars issued from time to time
and as decided by the Board from time to time.

1l Laying down and .eview of procedures relating to risk assessment & risk minimization to ensure that
executive management controls risk through means ofa properly defined framework.
2) Appraising the Board of Directors at regular intervals regarding the process of putting in place a

proBressive risk management system, risk management policy and strategy
3l To decide the policy and strategy For integraled risk management containing various risk exposurcs
including credit, market, liquidity, operational and reputational risk
4l To obtain regular risk management reports to enable the Committee to assess risks involved in Bank
business and give clear focus to current and forward Iooking aspects ofrisk exposure
5) To review the Asset Liability Management IALM) ofthe Bank on a regular basis
6J To review risk return profile ofthe Banl! capital adequacy based on risk profile of Bank balance sheet,

business continuity plan, disaster recovery plan, key risk indicators and significant risk exposures
7J To carry out prudent risk diversification ensuring that credit exposure to anygroup or industry does not
exceed the internal limits

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The Bank has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee with the following directors:

Ms. Vijayalatha Reddy - Committee Chairman

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan - Member
Mr. Aiay Kanwal - Member
Mr. Puneet Bhatia - Member

The Committee did not meet during the year under review.

The terms ofreference of the committee include:

[a) Formulating and recommending to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be

undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII [attached as Annex A);

[b] Recommendingthe amount ofexpenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities.
(c) Monitoring the Corporate Social Responsjbjlity Policy ofthe Company from time to time.
(d) transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR proiects or progaams or activities
undertaken by the Company.

'fhe role ofthe Corporate Social Responsibllity Committee:

a) The Board shall ensure that the Bank spends in every financial year atleast 20% ofthe average net profits
ofthe Bank made during the three immediately preceding financialyearc in pursuance of its CSR policy.
bJ Where the Bank fails to spend such amounl the Board shall in its repoft specify the reasons for not
spendingthe amount. The approach is to'comply or explain'.



c) The Bank shall give prefere[ce to local areas where it opemtes, for spending amount earmarked for
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSRJ activities.

. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE:

The Bank has constituted an Information Technology Strategy Committee with the following directorc:

Ms. Vijayalatha Reddy - (Committee Chairman]
Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan - Member
Mr. Ajay Kanwal - Member
Mr, Vikram Gandhi - Member
Mr. R. Ramaseshan

The Committee met 4 times during the year under review. The dates ofthe meeting were 9-May-2019; 13-
A\g-2019 ; 24 -O ct-2079 and 31-Jan'2020,

Terms ofreference:

The Committee is governed by the terms ofreference as specified by RBI circulars issued from time to
time.

1. To approve IT strategy and policy documents

2. To ensure that management has an effective strategic planning process

3. To ensure that IT strate$/ is aligned with business stmtery

4. To ensure that investments in Information Technology represent a balance ofrisks and benefits for
sustaining Banks growth and within the acceptable budget.

5. To monitor IT resources required to achieve strategicgoals and provide high-level direction for
sourcing and use oflT resources,

6. To oversee implementation ofprocesses and practices and ensuring that maximum value is delivered to
business

7. To ensure that all critical projects have a component for'project risk managemenf from IT perspective
(by defining project success measures and following up progress on IT projects).

B, To define and ensure effective implementation ofstandards of IT Governance, Business Continuity and
Data Governance.

9. To ensure that there is an appropriate framework ofinformation secu ty risk assessment within the
Bank.



CUSTOMER SERVICE COMMITTEE :

The Bank has constituted a Customer Service Committee with the following directors:

Ms. Chitra Talwar (Committee Chairman]
Mr. Ajay Kanwal (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Vikram Gandhi - Member
Ms. Vijayalatha Reddy - Member
Mr. R Ramaseshan - Member

The Committee met 4 times during the year under review. The dates ofthe meeting were 9-May-2019; 13-
ArB-2079; 24-Oct-2079 and 31-Jan-2020.

The terms ofreference ofthe Customer Service Committee include:

1) To review the level ofcustomer service in the Bank including customer complaints and the nature
oftheir resolution;

2J To provide guidance in improvingthe levelofcustomer service;

3) To ensure that the Bank provides and continues to provide best-in-class services across all its
category ofcustomers to help the Bank in protecting and growing its brand equityi

4) To formulate a comprehensive Deposit Policy incorporating issues such as death ofa depositor for
operations ofhis/her accounts, annual suraey ofdepositor satisfaction, product approval process

and triennial audit of customer services;

5) To oversee the functioning of the internal committee for customer service;

6) To evolve innovative measures for enhancing the quality of customer service and improving the
ovemll satisfaction level of customers.

7) To ensure implementation of directives received from RBI with respect to rendering ofservices to
Bank customers

The key roles & responsibilities ofthe Committee are provided belowl

1. Approving the various policies that relate to customer service; examples thereof include and are not
limited tol

. Comprehensive Deposit Policy

. Cheque Collection Policy

. Customer Compensation Policy

. Customer Grievance Redressal Policy
2. Reviewing metrics and indicators that provide information on the state ofcustomer service in the Bank;

providing diaection to the management ofthe Bank on actions to be taken to improve the metrics;
3. Reviewing the actions taken/ being taken by the Bank to standardize the delivery ofcustomer experience
across allbranches;
4. Reviewing results ofthe surveys conducted that provide quantitative and qualitative information on the
state of customer experience;



5. Providing inputs on the products introduced by the Bank with a view to ensure suitabiljty and
appropriateness;

6. Monitoring the implementation ofthe Banking 0mbudsman Scheme with particular reference to:
. Reviewing all the awards a8ainst the Bank with a focus on identi$/ing issues ofsystemic deficiencies and
the Bank's plan fo address these dellcien.iesl
. Reviewing all awards that remain unimplemented after 3 months from the date of the award with the
reasons thereof; to report to the Board such delays in implementation without valid reasons and fo.
initiating remedial actionj
7. Review, on an overall basis, the customer service aspects in the Bank on the basis of the detailed
memorandum submitted in this regard and report to the Board of Directors thereafter; this is done once
everysix months and based on the review, the Committee will direct the Bank to initiate prompt corrective
action wherever service quality / skills gaps have been noticed;
8. Monitoringthe activities ofthe Standing Committee on CustomerService (executive levelcommittee) on
a quarterly basis;

COMMITTEE FOR MONITORING LARGE VALUE FRAUDS

The Bank has constituted a Committee for monitoring large value frauds with the following directorsl

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan ICommittee ChairmanJ
Mr. Ajay Kanwal - Member
Mr. Vikram Gandhi - Member
Ms. Vijayalatha Reddy- Member
Mr. R Ramaseshan - Member
Ms. Chitra Talwar' Member

The Committee met once during the year under review. The date of the meeting was 14-Aug-2019.

The terms ofreference ofthe Committee are as under:

a. Identify the systemic lacunae, ifan, that facilitated perpetration ofthe fraud and put in place measures
to plug the same;

b. ldentify the reasons for delay in detection, ifany, reporting to top management ofthe Bank and RBI;
c. Monitorprogress ofCBI / Police Investigation and recovery position;
d. Ensure that staff accountability is examined at all levels in all the cases of frauds and staffside action, if
required, is completed quicklywithout loss oftime;
e. Review the efficacy ofthe remedial action taken to prevent recurrence offrauds, such as strengthening of
internal controls;
f. Put in place other measures as may be considered relevant to strengthen detective and preventive
measures against frauds;



CREDIT COMMITTEE

The Bank has constituted a Credit Committee with the following directors:

Mr. R, Ramaseshan (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Vikram Candhi

Ms. Chitra Talwar

The Committee met 4 times during the year under review. The dates ofthe meeting were 9-May-2019;13-
Aug-20 19 ;2 4 - O ct-z 0\9 an d 37 -Jan-2 02 0.

The terms ofreference ofthe Committee are as under:

1) Review credits approved bythe Credit Approval Committee ofthe Bankunder its authority
2) Approve credits beyond the authority ofthe Credit Approval Committee ofthe Bank.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

lndependent Directors ofthe Bank met during the year on 2id March 2020 to review the performance of
non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, review the performance of the Chairperson ofthe
Board and had accessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the bank
managemenl and the Board.

During the financial year ended 31$ March,2020 independent directors did not have any pecuniary
relationship with the Bank; neither did they have anytransactions with the Bank.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS AND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING:

The details oftheAnnual General Meetings / Extraordinary GeneralMeeting held in the lastthree years are

as follows:

ceneral Body
Meetins

Date, Time &Venue No. of Special Resolution
passed

Extra - Ordinary
General Meeting

16-Oct-2019 at 4130 p.m. at the
registered office address : "The Fairway
Business Park # 10/1, 77/2 &72/28 Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Nextto EGL Business Parl! Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

13th AnnualCeneml
Meeting

28-Jun-2019 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1, 11/2 &72/28 Ott
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Nextto EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bensaluru - 560071

NIL

Extra - Ordinary
General Meetine

30-May-2019 at 4:30 p.m. at the
resistered office address : "The Fairwav

1

2



Business Parh # 10/1,11/2 &12/28 Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Benealuru 560071

Extra - ordinary
General Meeting

25-Mar-2O19 at 4100 p.m. at the
registered office address : "The Fairway
Business Parh # 10/1,11/2 &L2/28 Ott
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

Extra - ordinary
GeneralMeeting

23-Nov-2018 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address: "The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1,71/2 &12/28 Ott
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

Extra - Ordinary
GeneralMeeting

17-Aug-201B at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : "Vaishnavi",
#29,LJnion Street, off Infantry Road,
Bangalore - 560 001

1

12th Annual General
Meeting

10-Aug'2018 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : "Vaishnavi",
#29,Union Street, off Infantry Road,
Bansalore - 560 001

NIL

Extra - ordinary
General Meeting

4-Apr-2018 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : "Vaishnavi",
#29,Union Street, off Infantry Road,
Eanqalore - 560 001

3

Extra - ordinary
General Meeting

5-Mar-2018 at 11r00 a.m. at the
registered office address : "Vaishnavi",
#2g,Union Street, off Infantry Road,
Bangalore - 560 001

1

Extra - ordinary
Geneml Meeting

l2-lan-207a at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : "Vaishnavi",
#29,Union Sfteel off Infantry Road,
Banqalore - 560 001

4

Extra - ordinary
GeneralMeeting

4-lan-20L8 at 11i00 a.m. at the
registered office address : "Vaishnavi",
#29,Union Street, off lnfantry Road,
Bansalore - 560 001

1

Extra - Ordinary
General Meeting

6-Sep-2O17 at 11:00 a.m. at the
re8istered office address | "Vaishnavi",
#29,Union Street, off lnfantry Road,
Bangalore - 560 001

Z

Dxtra - ordinary
General MeetinB

30-Aug-2017 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : "Vaishnavi",
+29,Union Street, off lnfantry Road,
Bangalore - 560 001

1

4



Extra - ordinary
Ceneral Meeting

9-AtE-2017 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address | "Vaishnavi",
#29,Union Sfieet, off Infantry Road,
Banqalore - 560 001

0

11th Annual General
Meeting

30-June-2017 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : "Vaishnavi",
#Zg,Union Street, off Infantry Road,
Banealore - 560 001

3

Extra - Ordinary
Genelal Meeting

23-Mar-2017 at 5:30 p.m. at the
registered office address :"Rajashree
Saroja Plaza", #34/1,Andree Road,
Shanthinagar, Bangalote - 560 027

1

Extra - ordinary
Ceneral Meeting

7"Mat2077 at 10:30 a.m. at the
registered office address :"Rajashree
Saroja Plaza", #34/1,Andree Road,
Shanthinaqar, Banqalore - 560 027

2

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Bank has a whistle blower policy, which was approved by the Board on 8t]' Feb 2018. The policy
provides a whistle blowing route to employees, including part time, temporary and contract employees and

direclors of the organisat ion.

Summary ofthepolicy:
. The policy defines the incidents that are required to be reported by a whistle blower, the concerns and

safeguards to the whistle blower.
. The procedure for raisingan issue underthe policyas well asthe investigation process and reporting of

the whistle blowing incidents are detailed in the policy.

COMPLIANCES:

There have been no instances ofnon-compliance by the Bank on any matter related to the capital markets,
nor have any penalty/strictures been imposed on the Bank by the Registrar ofCompanies, Reserve Bank of
India, Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority on such matters.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Date and time: 5rh I!ne 2020, 11:00 a.rn
"The Fairway Business Park' , # L0 /L, 1-1- /2
& 72/28 Off Domlur, Koramangala lnner
Ring road, Next to EGL Business Park
Challashatta, Bensaluru - 560071



Shareholding Pattern as on 3lsrMarch 2020

Sr

No.

Name of the Equity Shareholder class No oI Shares

holding
Domestic tnvestor

1 .lana Holdings Limited Class A 21,344,314 42.O4%

2 QRG Enterprises Limited Class A 986,216 1.94%

3 Vallabh Bhansha li Class A 119,470 0.24%

4 Enam Securities Private Limited Class A 4,290 0.o7%

5 Badri Narayan Pilinja Class A 115,195 4.23%

6 Vallabh Bhansha li HUF Class A 199,958 4.390/"

I Growth Partnership ll Shiv Shankar Co-investment Trust Class A 1,99s o ao+%

8 Growth Partnership ll Alay Tandon Co lnvestment Trust Class A 425 o.ao2%

BajaiAllianz Life lnsurance CompanV Ltd Class A 1,084,128 2.140/.

10 BajajAllianz General lnsurance Company Ltd -
Policyholder Fund

Class A 252,963 o 50%

11 BajajAllianzceneral Insurance Company Limited
Shareholder Fund

108,413 0.21%

12 lClCl Prudential Life lnsurance Company Ltd Class A 7,107,639 2.78%

13 lClCl Lombard General lnsurance Company Ltd Class A 361,376 o_71%

74 Hero Enterprise Partner Ventures Class A 315,427 o.62%

15 Ashwin Khorana Class A 650 o_4013%

16 Venkatesh lyer S Class A s09 0.0010%

11 Debdoot Banerjee Class A 229 0.000s%

18 Ana nth Kumar M S Class A 289 0.0006%

19 Ha rnath Kummamuru CassA 262 0.0005%

Foreign lnvestor

20 TPG As a V SF Pte Ltd CassA 5,026,499 9.91%

2L North Haven Private Equity Asia Platinum Pte. Ltd

(earlier known as MSPEA Platinum Pte. Ltd.)
CassA 4,747,421 a_18%

22 Ca adium nvestment Pte Ltd Class A 762,608 1.50%

23 Client Rosehi lLimited Class A 1,757,7 55 3.41%

24 Alpha TC Holdings Pte. Ltd Class A 1,7 48,975 3.45%

25 CVC GP lEmployee Rosehill Llmited Class A 984,455 1.944/.

26 Treeline Asia Master Fund (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Class A 1,652,101 3.26%

21 lndia Financial lnclusion Fund (lFlF) Class A 246,220 o49%
28 Global Financial lnclusion Fund Class A -141,285 o.28%

29 Harbourvest Partners Co-lnvestment Fund lV L.P. Class A 2,266,940 4.47%

30 Harbourvest Partners Co-lnvestment lV AIF L.P. Class A 595,353 t.r7%
31 Harbourvest Skew Ease AIF L.P. CassA 14,469 a_14%

H PEP Vl Partnershlp Fund L.P. CassA 214,714 a_s4%

33 HIPEP Vlll Partnership AIF L.P. Class A 183,186 4.360/a



34 Harbourvest Asia Pacific Fund Vlll L.P. Class A 4A,O10 0.08%
35 Harbourvest Asia Pacific VlllAlF L.P. Class A 14,418 o.15%

36 Harbourvest Co lnvestment Opportunities Fund L.P Class A 286,229 0.564/d

31 Harbourvest Co'lnvest 2017 Private Equity Partners L.P. Class A 572,456 1_13%

38 The Maple Fund L.P. Class A 512,456 7.130/.

39 lvlanipal Research & Management Services lnternational Class A 156,500 0.31%
40 Amansa holdlngs Pte. Ltd Class A 3,154,215 6.22%

Total 50,718,603 100.00%

Sr

No.
Name of the Compulsorily Convertible Preference

Shares
class No of shares

holdins
Domestic lnvestor

1 Hero Enterpr se Partner Ventures NA 150,000,000 100 00%

Total 1s0,000,000

Ramesh Ramanathan
Non Executive Chairman

Date: 4 May 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

To the Members of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited (“the Bank”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at  March 31, 2020, the Profit and Loss Account, Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as 
well as the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required for Banking Companies and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2020, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the  
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.  

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 7.4 to the financial statements, which describes that the extent to which 

the COVID-19 Pandemic will impact the Bank’s financial statements will depend on future 

developments, which are highly uncertain.  

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.  

 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
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Identification of Non-Performing Assets (‘NPA’) and Provisioning on Advances 
Total Loans and Advances (Net of Provision) as at March 31, 2020: Rupees 9,959.24 crore 
Gross NPA as at March 31, 2020: Rupees 320.81 crore 
Provision for NPA as at March 31, 2020: Rupees 180.43 crore 
 
Refer Schedule 17(5) and Schedule 18(7) to the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Identification of NPA and measurement of 

provision on account of NPA is made based on the 

assessment of various criteria stipulated in the 

Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) guidelines on 

‘Prudential Norms on Income Recognition, Asset 

Classification and Provisioning pertaining to 

advances’ ('IRACP'). The Bank is required to 

prepare a Board approved policy as per the IRACP 

guidelines for NPA identification and provision. 

 

The IRACP guidelines stipulate the requirement to 

identify NPA through defined criteria such as past 

due status, out of order status etc. Provisions in 

respect of such NPAs and restructured advances 

are made based on minimum provisioning levels 

prescribed under the IRACP and Bank’s internal 

credit policy. The provision on NPAs are also based 

on the valuation of the security available. In case 

of restructured accounts, provision is made for 

erosion/ diminution in fair value of restructured 

loans, in accordance with the RBI guidelines. 

Further, NPA classification is made borrower wise 

whereby if one facility to the borrower becomes 

an NPA then all facilities to such a borrower will 

be treated as an NPA. 

The Bank is also required to apply its judgement 

to determine the identification and provision 

required against NPA by applying quantitative as 

well as qualitative factors. The risk of 

identification of NPA is affected by factors like 

stress and liquidity concerns in certain sectors. 

The Bank has framed policies in line with the RBI's 

guidelines vide 'COVID-19 – Regulatory Package' 

and 'COVID19 Regulatory Package - Asset 

Classification and Provisioning' thereby providing 

moratorium as a relief measure to the borrowers 

and creating required provisions against these 

reliefs. Additionally, the Bank makes provisions on 

exposures that are not classified as NPAs for 

identified advances that can potentially slip into 

Tested the design and operating effectiveness 

of key internal controls (including application 

controls) over approval, recording and 

recovery of loans, monitoring process for 

overdue/ stressed accounts, identification of 

NPA, measurement of provision on account of 

NPA and valuation of security and collateral 

against loans. 

Testing of application controls includes testing 

of automated controls, reports and system 

reconciliations. 

Evaluated the governance process and review 

controls over identification of NPA, 

measurement of provision and basis of 

provisioning in accordance with the Bank’s 

policy. 

An inclusive list of substantive procedures 

performed is mentioned below: 

• For sample borrowers, assessed the 
appropriateness of asset classification and 
adequacy of related provisioning by 
performing procedures such as 
computation of overdue ageing, 
assessment of borrower level NPA 
identification and verification of 
applicable provision rates as per IRACP 
norms and Bank's Policy; 
 

• Selected samples of performing loans to 
assess whether they should be classified as 
NPA; 
 

• For selected samples, reviewed the 
collateral valuation performed by the 
Bank; 

 

• Performed inquiries with the Management 
of the Bank to ascertain if there were 
indicators of stress, perceived credit risk 
or occurrence of an event of default in any 
particular class of borrowers, product 
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NPA. These are classified as contingency 

provisions. 

We have identified 'Identification of NPA and 

Provisioning on Advances' as a key audit matter in 

view of the significant level of estimation 

involved, as well as the stringent compliances laid 

down by the RBI in this regard. 

category or loan account that warrants 
NPA assessment; 
 

• Selected samples for standard and overdue 
accounts to assess compliance with the RBI 
guidelines vide its circulars 'COVID-19 – 
Regulatory Package' and 'COVID19 
Regulatory Package - Asset Classification 
and Provisioning'. 

 

Reviewed the adequacy and accuracy of 

disclosures against the relevant accounting 

standards and RBI requirements relating to 

NPA. 

 

Information Technology (“IT”) Systems and Controls  

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

The Bank’s key financial accounting and 

reporting processes are highly dependent on 

information systems including automated 

controls in systems, such that there exists a risk 

that gaps in the IT control environment could 

result in the financial accounting and reporting 

records being materially misstated. Amongst, its 

multiple IT systems, five systems namely Core 

Banking System (‘CBS’), Oracle General Ledger 

(‘OGL’), Sales Force Dot Com (‘SFDC’), Kondor 

Plus and Workline Human Resource Management 

System (‘HRMS’) are key for its overall financial 

reporting. 

We have identified ‘IT systems and controls’ as 

key audit matter because of the high level 

automation, significant number of systems being 

used by the management and the complexity of 

the IT architecture and its impact on the financial 

reporting system. 

 
 

For testing the IT general controls, 
application controls and IT dependent manual 
controls, involved IT specialists as part of the 
audit. The team also assisted in testing the 
accuracy of the information produced by the 
Bank’s IT systems. 
 
Gathered a comprehensive understanding of 
IT applications landscape implemented at the 
Bank. It was followed by process 
understanding, mapping of applications to the 
same and understanding financial risks posed 
by people-process and technology. 
 
Tested user access management change 
management, segregation of duties, system 
reconciliation controls and system application 
controls over key financial accounting and 
reporting systems. 
 
Tested a sample of key controls operating 
over the information technology in relation to 
financial accounting and reporting systems, 
including system access and system change 
management, program development and 
computer operations. 
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 Other areas that were assessed included 

password policies, security configurations, 
system interface controls, controls over 
changes to applications and databases and 
that business users, developers and 
production support did not have access to 
change applications, the operating system 
or databases in the production 
environment. 

 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 
 

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Bank’s Board report, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditors’ reports thereon.   

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for Financial Statements  

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these  financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act and provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and circulars, 
guidelines and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time as applicable to Bank. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the  financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the  financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Bank’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate 
the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.  
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our Auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
  
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

 

Other Matter  

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2019, were audited by another 
auditor whose report dated May 30, 2019 expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements. 
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.  

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  
 

2. As required by Section sub-section 3 of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we report 
that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and have found them to 
be satisfactory; 
 

b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice during the course of our audit, 
have been within the powers of the Bank; 
 

c) Since the key operations of the Bank are automated with the key applications integrated to 
the core banking system, the audit is carried out centrally as all the necessary records and 
data required for the purposes of our audit are available therein. 
 

3.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books; 
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 to the extent they are not inconsistent with the accounting policies prescribed by the 
Reserve Bank of India; 
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Bank and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure A”; 
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;  
 
The Bank is a Banking Company as defined under Banking Regulation Act, 1949. Accordingly, 
the requirements prescribed under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply; and 
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:  
 

i. The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2020 on its 
financial position in its financial statements – Refer Schedule 12, Schedule 17(13) and 
Schedule 18(13) to the financial statements;  
 

ii. The Bank has made provision as at March 31, 2020, as required under the applicable 
law or accounting standard, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term 
contracts including derivative contracts.  

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Bank. 
 

 
For MSKC & Associates (Formerly known as R. K. Kumar & Co) 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 001595S 

 

Tushar Kurani 
Partner 
Membership No. 118580 
UDIN: 20118580AAAABC2841 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 04, 2020 

 
 

 

 



 

            

   

 
ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED 
 
[Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the 
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited on 
the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jana Small 
Finance Bank Limited (“the Bank”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Bank’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Bank 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements 
 
A Bank’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Bank's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Bank; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Bank are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the Bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Bank's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Bank considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 
 
 
 
For MSKC & Associates (Formerly known as R. K. Kumar & Co) 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 001595S 

 

Tushar Kurani 
Partner 
Membership No. 118580 
UDIN: 20118580AAAABC2841 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 04, 2020 
 
 

 






























































































